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9 CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA, WESTERN DIVISION D p 
cAstNo.c V09- 36 94oc-~ 

10 

11 CALIFORNIA HOSPITAL 
ASSOCIATION, 

12 

13 

COMPLAINT 
Plaintiff, 

vs. 
14 

DAVID MAXWELL-JOLLY, 
15 DIRECTOR OF THE CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE 
16 SERVICES, 

17 

18 

19 

20 1. 

Defendant. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

Plaintiff California Hospital Association ("CHA") brings this 

21 complaint pursuant to 28 U.S.C. sections 1331, 1343, 1367, and the Supremacy 

22 Clause. Shaw v. Delta Air Lines, Inc., 463 U.S. 85, 96 n. 14 (1983). 

23 2. Venue lies in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. section 1391, in that 

24 Defendant David Maxwell-Jolly, Director of the California Department of Health 

25 Care Services (the "Director") has offices within this judicial district and is thus 

26 deemed to reside within this judicial district. 

27 /// 

28 II I 
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3. The fabric of the health care safety net is quickly deteriorating. For 

countless Californians, including an increasing number of uninsured and Medi-Cal 

beneficiaries, emergency departments are the difference between life and death and 

are the most important component of our State's health care "safety net." See Bell v. 

Blue Cross of California, 131 CaLApp.4th 121, 222 (2005). As fewer physicians 

participate in Medi-Cal due to the deficient reimbursement rates, more Medi-Cal 

beneficiaries seek care from emergency service providers as their only source of 

health care. See Independent Living Centers of Southern California v. Shewry, 2008 

WL 3891211, *9 {C.D. CaL 2008). Emergency departments, in turn, are legally 

obligated to provide medical services to evaluate or stabilize emergency medical 

conditions. See Bell, 131 Cal.App.4th at p. 21 I. 'The prompt and appropriate 

reimbursement of emergency providers ensures the continued financial viability of 

California's health care delivery system." Id. at 218. 

4. Hospital care in California is at a cross-roads. During the past 13 years, 

90 California hospitals have permanently closed, resulting in the loss of thousands 

of acute care beds and 41 emergency rooms. Hospitals frequently cite inadequate 

reimbursement, including Medi-Cal reimbursement, as a key reason for the closures. 

5. The deterioration of the California safety net is perhaps most evident in 

Los Angeles County, where, in some areas, the healthcare system is now in crisis. 

Emergency room and hospital closures in Los Angeles County make Los Angeles 

County especially vulnerable to reductions in Medi-Cal payments. As other 

providers limit their participation in the Medi-Cal program, increasing numbers of 

patients will seek care at Los Angeles County's remaining emergency rooms, which 

struggle operationally and financially to care for them. 

6. By this action, hospitals seek an injunction to invalidate and stop the 

implementation of mandated payment rates from Medi-Cal managed care plans for 

emergency and poststabilization services provided by hospitals that do not contract 

2 
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1 with those plans (''Non-Contracted Hospitals"). The Director has established 

2 payment rates to Non-Contracted Hospitals for inpatient emergency services (''Non-

3 Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates") at an average of the rates paid to certain 

4 hospitals under Medi-Cal pursuant to contracts with the State. The Director has 

5 established payment rates to Non-Contracted Hospitals for services provided once 

6 an emergency patient is stabilized (''Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization 

7 Rates") for most hospitals as the lesser of 90% of a hospital's interim rate (as 

8 described below) and 95% of the average of the rates paid to certain hospitals 

9 pursuant to Medi-Ca\ contracts with the State. This is the precise methodology of 

10 payment that has recently been enjoined by the Ninth Circuit in California 

11 Pharmacists Association v. Shewry (9th Cir. 2009) _F. 3d._, 2009 WL 975458. 

12 7. These mandated payment rates (collectively, ''Non-Contracted Hospital 

13 Rates") will drastically impair payments to hospitals for emergency and 

14 poststabilization services, falling far below the costs incurred by many of these 

15 hospitals for these services. These Non-Contracted Hospital Rates, by virtue of 

16 being based in part or in whole on statewide average rates, are unreasonable by 

17 making payments without taking into account the nature of services provided, e.g., 

18 regardless of whether the patient was a gunshot victim (which incurs a lot of 

19 services and costs) or mistook indigestion for a heart attack (which often simply 

20 involves monitoring the patient at minimal costs). In many cases, these amounts 

21 will result in payments less than the amounts hospitals would receive from the 

22 Department for the exact same services. This disparity will undoubtedly cause some 

23 hospitals to consider closing emergency rooms in the struggle to remain financially 

24 viable. 

25 8. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are illegal because California 

26 failed to fulfill its legal mandate under federal law to ensure that those rates are 

27 consistent with efficiency, economy, quality of care and sufficiency of access. 42 

28 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(30)(A) ("Section 30(A)"). The State further violated federal law 
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1 by mandating these rates without the proper public process required to establish 

2 payment rates to hospitals. 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(13)(A) ("Section 13(A)"); 42 

3 C.F.R. § 447.205. Indeed, these Non-Contracted Hospital Rates require an 

4 amendment to the California Medi-Cal State Plan, which may not be implemented 

5 prior to federal approval. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

9. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are further unlawful as an 

unconstitutional taking because they take property from Non-Contracted Hospitals 

to give to Medi-Cal managed care plans without any public use or public purpose. 

10. The Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates also violate and are 

preempted by 42 U.S.C. section 1396u-2(b)(2)(D), because they do not include 

supplemental payments to hospitals under their Medi-Cal contracts in the average 

rates and are computed as straight, unweighted average. The Non-Contracted 

Hospital Emergency Rates therefore are not an accurate average of the rates 

received by hospitals under their Medi-Cal contracts, and are not a reasonable 

computation of the amounts the Non-Contracted Hospitals would receive for 

services under the Medi-Cal fee-for-service program for emergency services. 

11. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststahilization Rates are also illegal 

because they establish a new standard of payment that does not comport with the 

requirements of 42 U.S.C. section 1396u-2(b)(2)(A)(ii), 42 C.F.R. section 438.114 

or California Welfare and Institutions Code section 14091.3(c)(3) that incorporates 

21 by reference 42 C.F.R. section 438.114. 

22 12. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are unlawful because they were 

23 implemented as underground regulations in violation of the California 

24 Administrative Procedure Act through the issuance of informal "All Plan Letters," 

25 and not formal rulemaking. 

26 13. Lastly, the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are unlawful because they 

27 attempt to establish rates that are lower than: (I) the "reasonable charges" rate of 

28 payment required for emergency services set forth in California Health and Safety 

COMPLAINT 
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1 Code section 1317.2a(d); (2) the "charges" rate of payment for poststabilization 

2 services set forth in California Health and Safety Code section 1268.2; and the 

3 "reasonable and customary value" of services rate of payment required for all 

4 healthcare services provided by non-contracted providers required set forth in Title 

5 28, California Code of Regulations section 1300.7l(a)(3). 

6 14. For these reasons and the reasons set forth below, the Non-Contracted 

7 Hospital Rates violate federal law, the federal and state constitutions and California 

8 law. Accordingly, Plaintiff seeks declaratory and injunctive relief to invalidate the 

9 Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and to ensure that Non-Contracted Hospitals are not 

10 forced to provide services at a loss, to the financial benefit of managed care plans. 

11 

12 THE PARTffiS 

13 15. Defendant DAVID MAXWELL-JOLLY IS the Director of the 

14 Department of Health Care Services and, as such, has the responsibility to 

15 administer the Medi-Cal program consistent with the Medicaid Act. The Director is 

16 sued in his official capacity. The Department is the single state agency charged with 

17 the administration of California's Medicaid program, known as Medi-Cal. See 

18 California Welf. & Inst. Code §§ 14000 et seq. The Director has an office in the 

19 County of Los Angeles. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

16. Plaintiff CALIFORNIA HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION ("CHA") 1s a 

trade association representing the interests of hospitals in the State of California 

CHA is incorporated in the State of California as a non-profit public benefit 

corporation with its principal office in Sacramento, California. CHA represents 

nearly 450 hospitals and health systems throughout California, including general 

acute care hospitals, children's hospitals, rural hospitals, psychiatric hospitals, 

acadeinic medical centers, county and other public hospitals, investor-owned 

hospitals, and multi-hospital health systems. These hospitals furnish vital health 

care services to Inillions of our states' citizens. CHA also represents more than 150 

COMPLAINT 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Executive, Associate and Personal members. CHA brings this action on its own 

behalf and in its representative capacity on behalf of its members, many of which 

provide emergency and poststabilization services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries enrolled 

in managed care plans with which the member hospitals do not contract and have 

been and will continue to be directly and adversely affected by the implementation 

of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates, and on behalf of its members' patients. 

17. CHA also has associational standing to bring its claims on behalf of its 

members and Medi-Cal beneficiaries. The members of CHA are hospitals, many of 

which provide emergency and poststabilization services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries 

enrolled in managed care plans with which the hospitals do not contract These 

hospital providers have suffered and will continue to suffer a concrete economic 

injury in the form of reduced payment for emergency and poststabilization services 

by the unlawful implementation of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates. In addition, 

CHA member hospitals have been and will continue to be adversely affected by the 

implementation of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates because of the impact that 

such rates have on contract negotiations between hospitals and Medi-Cal managed 

care plans. Medi-Cal managed care plans are frequently unwilling to pay a hospital 

more than the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates under a contract with the hospital 

because they would not have to pay more than such rates to the hospital without a 

contract As a result, hospitals are forced either to go without a contract and obtain 

the deficient and unlawful Non-Contracted Hospital Rates, or enter into contract for 

22 these same below market rates. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

18. Hospitals, as medical providers, are in a unique position to advance the 

interests of Medi-Cal beneficiaries. CHA's hospital members have an extremely 

close relationship with their Medi-Cal beneficiary patients who seek care from them. 

A Medi-Cal beneficiary cannot secure medical services without his/her health care 

providers, and without reimbursement by Medi-Cal for those services. Hospitals are 

better positioned and informed as to the impact of a reimbursement rate cut on the 
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1 services they intend to, and in many instances, are required to, provide. 

2 19. Furthermore, Medi-Cal beneficiaries face economic hindrances to their 

3 ability to asse1t their own rights in this case. 

4 

5 FEDERAL MEDICAID LAW 

6 20. Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. sections 1396 et seq., 

7 the Medicaid Act, authorizes federal financial support to states for medical 

8 assistance to low-income persons who are aged, blind, disabled, or members of 

9 families witli dependent children. 1 The program is jointly financed by the federal 

10 and state governments and administered by the states. The states, in accordance 

11 with federal law, decide eligible beneficiary groups, types and ranges of covered 

12 services, payment levels for services, and administrative and operative procedures. 

13 Payment for services is made directly by states to tlie individuals or entities that 

14 furnish the services. 42 C.F.R. § 430.0. 

15 21. In order to receive matching federal financial participation, states must 

16 agree to comply with the applicable federal Medicaid law and regulations, 42 U.S.C. 

17 sections 1396 et seq. Once a state has decided to participate in the Medicaid 

18 program, compliance with the federal Medicaid law and regulations is mandatory. 

19 22. At the state level, the Medicaid program is administered by a single 

20 state agency, which is charged with the responsibility of establishing and complying 

21 with a state Medicaid plan (the "State Plan") that, in tum, must comply with the 

22 

23 1 The Medicaid Act is distinguishable from the Medicare Act, Title XVIII of the 

24 Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 1395 et seq. The Medicare Program is a federal 
health insurance program for the aged, blind and disabled under which qualified 

25 health care providers, including hospitals, are reimbursed directly by the federal 

26 government for the treatment and care they provide to Medicare Program 
beneficiaries. The Medicare program directly contracts with certain managed care 

27 plans to pay providers for services provided to Medicare beneficiaries. 

28 
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1 provisions of the applicable federal Medicaid law. 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(5) and 42 

2 C.F.R. §§ 430.10 and 431.10. The State Plan must be submitted to the Secretary of 

3 the United States Department of Health and Human Services (the "Secretary") for 

4 approval and must describe the policies and methods to be used to set payment rates 

5 for each type of service included in the state Medicaid plan. 42 C.F.R. §§ 430.10 

6 and 447.20l(b). Changes to the State Plan may not be implemented by the state 

7 prior to being approved by the Secretary. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

23. For hospitals and certain other institutional providers, states must 

establish rates through a public process that includes: (a) publication of proposed 

rates, the methodologies underlying the establishment of such rates, and 

justifications for the rates; (b) a reasonable opportunity for comment on the 

proposed rates, methodologies and justifications by providers, beneficiaries and 

their representatives, and other concerned State residents; and (c) publication of the 

final rates, the methodologies underlying the establishment of such rates, and 

justifications for such final rates. See Section 13(A); 42 C.F.R. § 447.205. 

24. Each state's Medicaid plan must "provide such methods and 

procedures ... relating to the utilization of, and the payment for, care and services 

available under the plan which may be necessary ... to assure that payments are 

consistent with efficiency, economy, and quality of care and are sufficient to enlist 

enough providers so that care and services are available under the plan at least to the 

extent that such care and services are available to the general public in the 

geographic area .... " Section 30(A); 42 C.F.R. § 447.204. 

25. Historically, services under state Medicaid programs have been 

provided on a "fee-for-service" basis under which the state reimburses health care 

providers directly for covered services to Medicaid beneficiaries. 

26 26. States may also choose to contract with managed care organizations 

27 ("MCOs"), such as health maintenance organizations, to provide or arrange for 

28 services. See 42 U.S.C. §1396u-2; 42, C.F.R. Part 438. In general, through these 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

contracts, an MCO is paid a fixed, prospective, monthly payment for each 

beneficiary (or "member") emolled with the entity for health coverage. Medicaid 

Managed Care, 67 Fed. Reg. 40989 (June 14, 2002) (to be codified at 42 C.F.R. pt. 

438). The capitated payment typically is payment in full for all services listed in the 

contract between the state agency and the MCO, regardless of the level of services 

used by each beneficiary. In turn, the MCO assumes the financial risk of its 

members' care and pays health service providers directly. 

27. Prior to 2002, states may mandate emollment in a Medicaid MCO only 

by establishing a mandatory managed care program through a federal "waiver" or 

"demonstration" program established pursuant to section 1115 or section 1915(b) of 

the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 1315, 1396n.). The passage of 42 U.S.C. 

section 1396u-2 gave states the flexibility to establish mandatory managed care 

programs for defined populations, without having to obtain specific waivers from 

the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and 

Medicaid Services ("CMS") for 42 U.S.C. sections 1396a(a)(l) [requiring that a 

State Plan be in effect in all political subdivisions of the State], 1396a(a)(lO)(B) 

[requiring comparability of medical assistance among Medicaid beneficiaries and 

between Medicaid beneficiaries and non-Medicaid beneficiaries], and 

1396a(a)(23)(A) [freedom of choice]. 

20 28. There has been a proliferation of mandatory Medicaid managed care 

21 programs across the country in recent years. 

22 29. To deliver covered services, most MCOs contract with and establish a 

23 "network" of physicians, hospitals and other in-plan medical service providers. 

24 With the exception of emergency and poststabilization services, Medicaid 

25 beneficiaries emolled in a MCO are generally restricted to using in-plan, network 

26 providers. 

27 30. Providers, such as hospitals, are not obligated to contract with MCOs, 

28 nor are MCOs obligated to enter into contracts with any particular provider. When 
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1 MCOs do contract with providers of health care services, the rates generally are set 

2 through arms'-length negotiations, based on market factors. 

3 31. When a hospital enters into a written contract with a health plan, it 

4 agrees to accept reimbursement that is discounted from the hospital's total billed 

5 charges in exchange for the benefits of being a "contracted provider" (i.e., a 

6 provider with a written contract with the plan). These benefits typically include an 

7 increased volume of business because the health plan identifies to its members that 

8 the contracted provider is "in-network," which means that the member is able to 

9 obtain services from the contracted provider. Conversely, when a hospital does not 

10 have a written contract with a health plan, the hospital typically receives less 

11 business from the plan, but the hospital's expectation of payment is no longer 

12 constrained by any contract. 

13 32. Medicaid MCOs are required to pay for emergency services provided 

14 to Medicaid beneficiaries enrolled in the relevant MCO, regardless of whether the 

15 MCO has a written contract with the emergency service provider. 42 U.S.C. § 

16 1396u-2(b)(2)(A). 

17 

18 CALIFORNIA MEDI-CAL PROGRAM 

19 33. The State of California has elected to participate in the Medicaid 

20 program. California has named its program "Medi-Cal." See Cal. Wei£ & Inst. 

21 Code§§ 14000 et seq.; 22 Cal. Code of Regs.§§ 50000 et seq. 

22 34. Medi-Cal healthcare payments are disbursed in two ways. The first is a 

23 "fee-for-service" process whereby the Department of Health Care Services (the 

24 "Department") determines whether the healthcare services are covered and 

25 furnished to an eligible beneficiary, and, if so, pays the service providers directly. 

26 35. The second is a managed care model under which the Department 

27 contracts with MCOs which are responsible for the provision of care to Medi-Cal 

28 beneficiaries enrolled with the MCO, and which pays healthcare providers for 
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1 services furnished to their members. 

2 

3 The Fee-For-Service Program for Inpatient Hospital Service 

4 36. Hospitals are reimbursed under the Medi-Cal fee-for-service program 

5 for inpatient services in one of two ways. Hospitals which have not entered into 

6 contracts to provide inpatient hospital services under the Selective Provider 

7 Contracting Program ("SPCP") are reimbursed under a cost-based reimbursement 

8 system. Under this system, hospitals are reimbursed the lowest of their reasonable 

9 costs determined in accordance with Medicare cost reimbursement principles, an all-

10 inclusive rate per discharge limitation which is determined by establishing a base 

11 cost per discharge for each hospital and adjusting the resulting rate annually to 

12 reflect inflation and other factors, a peer group limitation which is the sixtieth 

13 percentile rate per discharge of the peer group to which the hospital has been 

14 assigned,ortheircustomarycharges. 22C.C.R. §§ 51545 etseq. 

15 37. Under the cost-based reimburs=ent system, hospitals receive interim 

16 payments from the Department throughout the year which are intended to be an 

17 estimate of final reimbursement. These interim payments are calculated as a 

18 percentage of their charges. Final reimburs=ent for a hospital's fiscal year is 

19 determined well after the close of the fiscal year, after a Medi-Cal cost report is 

20 submitted by the hospital and audited by the Department. The interim payments are 

21 then reconciled with the amount of the fmal reimbursement. 

22 38. Both interim and final payments to hospitals under the cost-based 

23 reimbursement system were reduced pursuant to California Assembly Bill 5 ("AB 

24 5") and Assembly Bill 1183 ("AB ll83"), passed in 2008. AB 5 added sections 

25 14105.19 and 14166.245 to the Welfare and Institutions Code. Effective July I, 

26 2008, these provisions reduced interim payments by ten percent and limited final 

27 payments to 90% of reasonable costs. 

28 39. AB 1183 amended Welfare and Institutions Code section 14166.245 to 

COMPLAINT 
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1 retain the limitation on reimbursement to 90% of reasonable cost and, effective 

2 October 1, 2008, added a limitation on reimbursement to 95% of the average 

3 contract rates under SPCP contracts, as discussed in greater detail below. AB 1183 

4 further amended Welfare and Institution Code section 14105.19 to make it 

5 inoperative to services provided after February 28, 2009 and added Welfare and 

6 Institutions Code section 14105.191 which, inter alia, modified the AB 5 reductions 

7 for certain services. 

8 40. The second way hospitals are reimbursed for inpatient services under 

9 the Medi-Cal fee-for-service program is through the SPCP. In 1982, the California 

10 Legislature authorized the Department to enter into contracts with selected hospitals 

11 to furnish inpatient services under Medi-Cal, in accordance with the terms set forth 

12 in those contracts, by enacting the SPCP. See Cal. W elf. and Inst. Code § 14081 et 

13 seq. SPCP contracts are negotiated by the California Medical Assistance 

14 Commission ("CMAC") on behalf of the Department. The State selectively 

15 contracts, on a competitive basis, with those hospitals in California that agree to be 

16 reimbursed under the terms of an SPCP contract for inpatient hospital services 

17 provided to Medi-Cal beneficiaries. (This complaint will refer to hospitals that 

18 contract with the Department pursuant to the SPCP as "SPCP Hospitals" and 

19 hospitals that do not have SPCP contracts as "Non-SPCP Hospitals.") SPCP 

20 Hospitals are generally paid based on negotiated per diem rates for inpatient services 

21 furnished by the hospital. 

22 41. A fundamental goal of the SPCP is to negotiate contract rates which 

23 result in a savings to the Medi-Cal program as compared to the cost-based· 

24 reimbursement system, while maintaining access for Medi-Cal beneficiaries to 

25 hospital services. As a result, CMAC does not negotiate SPCP contracts to 

26 reimburse a hospital's costs, regardless of how efficiently and economically 

27 incurred. Instead, CMAC negotiates rates on a market driven basis to obtain the 

28 lowest rates possible for inpatient hospital services. Payments to hospitals under 

COMPLAINT 



' 

;;; 
. 8 ~ .. 
~.,~~ --·Q 
l~~~ -00 

=>o-...... "' . -
glii~~ 
m"'~ "'o'" tiS :.r:: .... a:-
6~~-
z~u= 
=:1 (l' ui tp 
...JjbJ-
~ 1- ..J ~ 

ffiZ"'"' .. "'~ a..ozo 
Ono(~ 
O,...tr~ ....... 
z fO 0 ·--_._. .. 

1-

2019484.5 

1 

2 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

SPCP contracts are generally a negotiated amount per patient day. Some hospitals 

have separate per diem rates for certain services, such as neonatal intensive care 

services. 

42. In addition to the per diem payments, many hospitals receive 

significant additional funding under their SPCP contracts, in the form of 

"supplemental payments" from, inter alia, the Private Hospital Supplemental Fund 

and the Distressed Hospital Fund, and under the Construction Renovation and 

Repair Program. See Cal. Welf. & lnst. Code§§ 14166.12, 14166.23, and 14085.5. 

This additional funding is an integral and vital part of the payment made to eligible 

hospitals. 

43. The SPCP operates in certain "closed" Health Facility Planning Areas 

("HFP As") of the ,state where SPCP contracts have been signed and Medi-Cal 

beneficiaries are required to receive inpatient hospital care at a contract hospital, 

except in emergencies and other enumerated exceptions. The SPCP does not 

operate in "open" HFPAs. These are primarily rural areas with few hospitals where 

the principles of competitive contracting do not apply . 

44. The rates of payment to SPCP Hospitals remain confidential from the 

public for three years pursuant to California Government Code section 6254( q). 

45. As of December 1, 2007, 203 out of the State's approximately 450 

hospitals operated under a SPCP contract with the Department, a decrease of 7 

hospitals since December 1, 2006. Twenty-one of these 203 hospitals are 

designated public hospitals which are reimbursed on the basis of their certified 

public expenditures for inpatient hospital services. The hospitals that do not 

participate in the SPCP continue to be paid under the cost-based reimbursement 

system for Medi-Cal inpatient hospital services. 

46. The rates paid to hospitals under the SPCP result from individual 

negotiations and may vary widely from hospital to hospital. Many factors 

contribute to the different varying per diem rates under the SPCP. These factors 
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1 include, but are not limited to, the number of hospitals in the area, the population 

2 each hospital serves, the services each hospital provides, and bed availability. 

3 

4 Medi-Cal Managed Care 

5 47. The Department operates several managed care models under Medi-Cal 

6 to provide or arrange for the provision of health care services to Medi-Cal 

7 beneficiaries. The three primary Medi-Cal managed care models are the Two-Plan 

8 Model, County Organized Health Systems ("COHS"), and Geographic Managed 

9 Care ("GMC") plans. One Prepaid Health Plan ("PHP") also exists. Each model is 

10 operated pursuant to and governed by specific statutes, regulations, and contract 

11 proVISions. 

12 48. Generally, each of these Medi-Cal managed care plans must be licensed 

13 as a health care service plan under the Knox-Keene Health Care Service Plan Act 

14 (the "Knox-Keene Act") and comply with the requirements of that licensure. Cal. 

15 Health & Saf. Code§§ 1340 et seq., 22 C.C.R. §§ 53200, 53840, 53910. However, 

16 California Welfare and Institutions Code section 14087.95 exempts COHS from the 

17 provisions of the Knox-Keene Act for the purpose of carrying out its Medi-Cal 

18 contracts with DHCS. 

19 49. The State of California has received waivers from certain requirements 

20 of the Medicaid Act pursuant to 42 U.S.C. section 1315 in order to conduct its 

21 Medi-Cal managed care programs. These waivers have included waivers of the 

22 following requirements: Freedom of Choice, Statewideness, Single State Agency, 

23 Comparability, Utilization Control, Contracts, and Redeterminations. None of these 

24 waivers have included waivers of Sections 30(A) or 13(A). 

25 

26 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY SERVICES 

27 50. The Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act 

28 ("EMTALA"), 42 U.S.C. section 1395dd, obligates hospitals with dedicated 
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1 emergency departments, as a condition of Medicare participation, to provide 

2 emergency medical services without delay, to any and all patients who present with 

3 an emergency medical condition, and to inquire about or seek payment only after the 

4 patient has been stabilized. EMTALA thus prohibits members of CHA from 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

denying emergency medical services based on the inadequacy of what will be paid 

for emergency medical services. 

51. Under federal law, emergency medical conditions are defined broadly 

and liberally under a "prudent layperson" standard. 

52. Under EMT ALA, hospitals with dedicated emergency departments also 

are required to treat any and all patients for treatment who present in active labor. 

53. CMS recently adopted a rule further requiring hospitals with 

specialized capabilities, but lacking dedicated emergency departments, to provide 

services to medically unstable patients transferred from other hospitals that lack the 

capacity to provide the services required. 

54. Almost every general hospital in the United States participates in the 

Medicare program including almost every CHA member hospital. 

55. Moreover, California state law independently requires that, as a 

condition of licensure, "[ e ]mergency services and care ... be provided to any person 

requesting the services or care, or for whom services or care is requested, for any 

condition in which the person is in danger of loss or life, or serious injury or illness, 

at any [hospital] that maintains and operates an emergency department .... " Cal. 

Health & Saf. Code § 1317(a). Emergency services and care must be provided 

without consideration for the patient's ability to pay for medical services and must 

be rendered without first questioning the patient as to his or her ability to pay for 

services. Cal. Health & Saf. Code§ 1317(b), (d). 

56. Services to a patient cease to be "emergency'' services when the patient 

is stable for transfer to a facility contracted with the MCO. See, e.g., 42 U.S.C. §§ 

1395dd(b)(I)(A), 1395dd(e)(3); 1396u-2(b)(2)(B). 
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1 57. "Post stabilization care services" is defined by federal law as "covered 

2 services, related to an emergency medical condition that are provided after an 

3 enrollee is stabilized in order to maintain the stabilized condition, or ... to improve 

4 or resolve the enrollee's condition." 42 C.F.R. § 438.114. "The attending 

5 emergency physician, or the provider actually treating the enrollee, is responsible 

6 for determining when that enrollee is sufficiently stabilized for transfer or discharge, 

7 and that determination is binding" on Medi-Cal managed care entities. 42 C.F.R. § 

8 438.114(d)(3). 

9 

10 FEDERAL LAWS GOVERNING PAYMENT FOR EMERGENCY AND 

11 POSTSTABILIZATION SERVICES 

12 58. 

13 as follows: 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Section 6085 of the Deficit Reduction Act (''DRA") of 2005 provides 

SEC. 6085. EMERGENCY SERVICES FURNISHED BY 
NON-CONTRACT PROVIDERS FOR MEDICAID 
MANAGED CARE ENROLLEES. 

(a) In General- Section 1932{b)(2) of the Social Security 
Act (42 U.S.C. l;l96u-(b)(2)) 1s amended by adding at the 
end of the followmg new subparagraph: 

(D) EMERGENCY SERVICES FURNISHED BY NON
CONTRACT PROVIDERS - Any provider of emergency 
services that does not have in effect a contract with a 
Medicaid managed care entity that establishes payment 
amounts for services furnished to a beneficiary enrolled in 
the entity's Medicaid managed care plan must accept as 
payment in full the amounts (!ess any payments for 
mdirect costs of medical education and direct costs of 
graduate medical education) that it could collect if the 
beneficiary received medical assistance under this title 
other than through enrollment in such an entity. In a state 
where rates pmo to hospitals under the state plan are 
negotiated by contract and not publicly released, the 
payment amount applicable under this sul:iparagraph shall 
be the average contract rate that would apply under the 
state plan for general acute care hospitals or the average 
cont~act rate tliat would apply under such plan for tertiary 
hospitals. 

(b) Effective Date - The amendment made by subsection 
(a) shall take effect on January I, 2007. 
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1 59. On information and belief, section 6085 of the DRA was proposed by 

2 lobbyists engaged by Medicaid MCO(s). On information and belief, Medicaid 

3 MCO(s) engineered the adoption of section 6085 for their financial advantage in 

4 order to avoid greater liability to Non-Contracted Hospitals. 

5 60. Federal law does not mandate any specific payment rate from Medicaid 

6 MCOs to Non-Contracted Hospitals for poststabilization services. 42 U.S.C. § 

7 1396u-2(b)(2)(A)(ii) requires that a MCO comply with guidelines for Medicare 

8 managed care plans "with regard to the coordination of post-stabilization care" "in 

9 the same manner as such guidelines apply to Medicare+Choice plans" offered under 

10 the Medicare Act.2 (Emphasis added.) 

11 61. 42 C.F.R. section 438.114 accordingly requires that Medicaid managed 

12 care plans cover and pay for poststabilization care "in accordance with provisions 

13 set forth at [42 C.F.R.] Sec. 422.113(c) .... In applying those provisions, reference 

14 to 'M+C organization' must be read as reference to the entities responsible for 

15 Medicaid payment. ... " 

16 62. 42 C.F.R. section 422.113(c) does not establish any specific rate of 

17 payment for poststabilization services. 42 C.F.R. section 422.113( c)(2) requires that 

18 a Medicare managed care plan maintains financial responsibility for the following 

19 poststabilization care: (1) poststabilization services that have been pre-approved by 

20 a plan provider or other plan representative consistent with 42 C.F.R. section 

21 422.214, (2) poststabilization services that are not pre-approved but are administered 

22 to maintain the patient's stabilized condition within 1 hour of a request to the 

23 Medicare managed care plan for pre-approval of further poststabilization services, 

24 

25 2 "Medicare+Choice" or "'M+C organization" is a reference to the predecessor to 
26 "Medicare Advantage," the program through which the federal Medicare program 

currently contracts with managed care plans to pay providers for services provided 
27 to Medicare enrollees. 

28 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1 or (3) poststabilization services that are not pre-approved but administered to 

maintain, improve, or resolve the patient's condition if (A) the plan does not 

respond to a request for pre-approval within I hour, (B) the plan carmot be contacted 

or (C) the plan representative and the treating physician cannot reach an agreement 

concerning the enrollee's care and a plan physician is not available for consultation. 

The Medicare managed care plan's responsibility to pay for poststabilization 

services that have not been pre-approved ends when: (I) a plan physician with 

privileges at the treating hospital assumes responsibility for the care of the patient, 

(2) a plan physician assumes responsibility for the patient by initiating transfer of 

the patient, (3) the plan and the treating physician reach an agreement concerning 

the patient's care or (4) the patient is discharged. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

63. 42 C.F.R. section 422.214 establishes that, in general, payments from 

Medicare managed care plans to non-contracted providers must be made at the 

amounts that would be made in full for a fee-for-service Medicare enrollee, less any 

pass-through payments made for managed care enrollees. In other words, Medicare 

managed care plans are required to pay Non-Contracted Hospitals for pre-authorized 

services the amounts those providers would be p~d by the Medicare fee-for-service 

program. This payment standard is inapplicable to poststabilization services 

provided within 1 hour of the hospital notifying a Medicare managed care plan of 

stabilization or if (A) the plan does not respond to a request for pre-approval within 

I hour, (B) the plan cannot be contacted or (C) the plan representative and the 

treating physician carmot reach an agreement concerning the enrollee's care and a 

plan physician is not available for consultation. 

64. The requirement in 42 C.F.R. section 438.114 that Medicaid MCOs 

cover and pay for poststabilization care "in accordance with" 42 C.F.R. section 

422.113(c) establishes the scope of a Medicaid managed care plan's financial 

responsibility to pay for poststabilization care, i.e., the situations in which the 

Medicaid managed care plan becomes financially liable for poststabilization care 

COMPLAINT 
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1 and the events which terminate the plan's financial liability for poststabilization 

2 care. 42 C.F.R. section 438.114's reference to 42 C.F.R. section 422.113(c) does 

3 not mandate any specific payment rate. 

4 65. On information and belief, no court has interpreted federal law to 

S establish any specific payment rate for Medicaid managed care plans to non-

6 contracted providers of poststabilization services following an inpatient emergency 

7 stay. Further, on information and belief, CMS also does not interpret its own 

8 regulations to establish any specific payment rate for Medicaid managed care plans 

9 to non-contracted providers of poststabilization services following an inpatient 

10 emergency stay. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

66. If 42 C.F.R. section 438.114's reference to 42 C.F.R. section 

422.113(c) was intended to establish any specific payment rate from Medicaid 

managed care plans to providers for pre-approved poststabilization services, that 

rate would be the Medicare fee-for-service rate. 42 U.S.C. section 1396u-

2(b)(2)(A)(ii); see also Medicaid Managed Care, 67 Fed. Reg. 40989 (June 14, 

2002) (to be codified at 42 C.F.R. pt. 438) ("the [poststabilization] services that 

must be covered are those that must be covered under Medicare rules ... in the 

same manner as these rules apply to [Medicare] plans .... "). 

20 CALIFORNIA STATUTES GOVERNING PAYMENT FOR NON

CONTRACTED SERVICES BY HEALTH CARE SERVICE PLANS 21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

67. Most Medi-Cal managed care plans are also governed by the Knox

Keene Act, which is administered by the California Department of Managed Health 

Care ("DMHC"). 

68. DMHC regulations require that a health care service plan pay a non

contracted provider "the reasonable and customary value for the health care services 

rendered based upon statistically credible information that is updated at least 

annually and takes into consideration: (i) the provider's training, qualifications, and 

-------------~c=c:!c."=c=--~----- - ·-·-----
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1 length of time in practice; (ii) the nature of the services provided; (iii) the fees 

2 usually charged by the provider; (iv) prevailing provider rates charged in the general 

3 geographic area in which the services were rendered; (v) other aspects of the 

4 economics of the medical provider's practice that are relevant; and (vi) any unusual 

5 circumstances in the case .... " Tit. 28, Cal. Code Regs., § 1300.7l(a)(3). This 

6 standard applies to any services provided by a non-contracted provider, regardless of 

7 whether the services are classified as "emergency services" or not. 

8 69. This standard matches the requirement in Health and Safety Code 

9 section 1317.2a(d), which requires that third-party payors, including health care 

10 service plans, be liable for the "reasonable charges" to a transferring hospital for 

11 emergency services. 

12 70. California law also requires most Medi-Cal managed care plans to take 

13 responsibility for initiating transfer of patients who arrive through emergency rooms 

14 at non-contracted hospital as soon as possible after stabilization. Cal. Health and 

15 Safety Code § 1371.4; Title 28, C.C.R. §§1300.71.4(b)(3), (c). In situations in 

16 which the managed care plan fails to transfer the patient, hospitals provide 

17 poststabilization services in order to improve or resolve the patient's condition. 

18 

19 CALIFORNIA'S INVALID ATTEMPTS TO REGULATE PAYMENTS 

20 FROM MEDI-CAL MANAGED CARE PLANS TO NON-CONTRACTED 

21 PROVIDERS OF EMERGENCY AND POSTSTABILIZATION SERVICES 

22 71. On March 16, 2007, the Department issued All Plan Letter 07-003 

23 ("APL 07-003"). APL 07-003 announced that in California, the applicable rates 

24 under section 6085 of the DRA were as follows: 

25 

26 

27 

28 

For out-of-plan/network general acute care hospitals, the 
applicable payment amount for emergency inpatient 
services is the average Selective Proviaer Contracting 
Program (SPCP) contract rate for general acute care 
hospitals. For out-of-plan/network tertiary care hospitals, 
the applicable payment amount for emergency inpatient 

-------------~------"'~o=;:o-------
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

services is the average SPCP contract rate for tertiary 
hospitals. 

However, because the Department determined that it would need further 

clarification from CMS before "develop[ing)" rates of payment pursuant to section 

6085, it "encourage[d]" Medi-Cal managed care plans to pay Non-Contracted 

Hospitals for emergency services according to average SPCP rates published in an 

Annual Report to the Legislature prepared by CMAC. The Department announced 

that "[ o ]nee the final rates are published, the managed care plans may be required to 

do a reconciliation process to ensure that all out-of-plan/network providers of 

emergency services, who were paid on a transition basis the [published rate in the 

CMAC Annual Report to the Legislature], have been reimbursed in accordance 

with" the rates set by the Department. Due to the issuance of this letter, neither 

Medi"Cal managed care plans nor Non-Contracted Hospitals could reasonably have 

expected the then-published average SPCP to be the final payment rates. 

72. On September 18, 2008, after a protracted budget stalemate, Governor 

Schwarzenegger signed Assembly Bill 1183 ("AB 1183"), the budget trailer bill for 

fiscal year 2008-09. A true and correct copy of pertinent sections of AB 1183 is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A . 

73. AB 1183 was introduced originally in February 2007 as a bill 

concerning hazardous materials. In September 2008, the Senate Committee on 

Budget took over AB 1183 and amended it by eliminating the provisions concerning 

hazardous materials and replacing them with budget trailer bill language, including 

the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates at issue in this case. Prior to these amendments 

passed in committee on September 15, 2008, the general public had never seen these 

proposed rates. The amended version of the bill was passed the very qext day, 

September 16, 2008, by both the Senate and the Assembly. The bill went to the 

Governor's office for signature just four days later and ultimately was executed on 

September 30, 2008. 
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74. AB 1183 amended Welfare and Institutions Code section 14166.245. 

Section 14166.245 as amended by AB 1183 limits Medi-Cal payments to Non

SPCP Hospitals for inpatient hospital services as follows effective October l, 2008: 

a. For most Non-SPCP Hospitals, interim payments for inpatient hospital 

services are the lesser of 90% of the interim rate or 95% of an "average regional per 

diem contract rate." Final reimbursement is limited to the lesser of 90% of the 

hospital's audited allowable cost per day or 95% of an "average regional per diem 

contract rate." 

b. "Small and rural hospitals" are exempted from these limitations 

altogether, except that they are subject to the 10% reduction to their interim rates 

and to their final reimbursement until November I, 2008. 

c. Certain hospitals in open HFP As are subject only to the 10% rate 

reductions and not the "average regional per diem contract rate" limitations. 

75. Welfare and Institutions Code section 14166.245 mandated that the 

"average regional per diem contract rates" be calculated as follows: 

(C)(i) For purposes of this subdivision and subdivision (c), 
fue average regional per diem contract rates shall be 
derived from unweig!ltoo average contractper diem rates 
that are P.Ublicly avrulable on June l of eacli year, trended 
forward based on the trends in the California Medical 
Assistance Commission's Annual Report to the 
Legislature. For tertiary hospitals, and for all other 
hospitals, the regional averag~ per diem contract rates 
shall be based on the _geogr!lPhic regions in the California 
Medical Assistance Commission's Annual Report to the 
Legislature. The applicable average reg!onar per diem 
contract rates for tertiary ho~itals ana for all other 
hospitals shall be published by tlie department on or before 
October l, 2008, and these rates shal be updated annually 
for each state fiscal _year and shall become effective each 
July l, thereafter. Supplemental payments shall not be 
included in this calculation. 

(ii) For purposes of clause (i), both the federal and 
nonfederal share of the designated public hospital cost
based rates shall be included- in the determinatiOn of the 
average contract rates by multiplying the hospital's interim 
rate, established pursuant to Section 14166.4 and that is in 
effect on June I of each year, by two. 

COMPLAINf 
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(iii) For the puwoses of this section, a terti!ll:Y hos2ital is a 
clnldren's hospital specified in Section 10727, or a no spital 
that has been designated as a Level I or Level Il trauma 
center by the Emergency Medical Services Authority 
established pursuant to Section 1797.1 of the Health ano 
Safety Code. 

76. On April 6, 2009, the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal, in California 

Pharmacists Association v. Maxwell-Jolly, _ F.3d _, 2009 WL 975458 (9th Cir. 

2009), stayed the application of various hospital reimbursement reductions enacted 

by AB 1183, including the reimbursement reductions in Welfare and Institutions 

Code section 14166.245, pending the appeal of the trial court's denial of a 

preliminary injunction. The Ninth Circuit concluded that the plaintiff hospitals and 

CHA had demonstrated a likelihood of success on the merits of their challenge to 

the AB 1183 rate reductions on the basis that the rate reductions were preempted by 

Section 30(A) and that the plaintiffs had established a likelihood of irreparable harm 

in the form of reduced payments that could not later be recovered in federal court 

due to the Eleventh Amendment. 

77. AB 1183 also enacted California Welfare and Institutions Code section 

14091.3, which states, in relevant part: 

(c) Anyhosp_ital that does not have in effect a contract 
With a Medi-~al mana_ged care health p_lan ... shall acc~t 
as payment in full, ffom all these plans, the following 
amounts: 

(1) For outpatient services, the Medi-Cal Fee-For-Service 
(FFS) payment amounts. 

(2) For emergency inpatient services, the average per diem 
contract rate specifieil in paragraph (2) of subdiVIsion (b) 
of Section 14166.245, except tliat the payment amount 
shall not be reduced by 5 percent. For the purposes of this 
paragraph, this _paYITlent amount shall apply to all 
hospitals, includmg hos2itals_ that contr<fct with . the 

·department under the Med1-Cal Selective Provider 
Contracting Program described in Article 2.7 
(commencmg witli Section 14081), and small and rural 
ho~itals specified in Section 1248"40 of the Health and 
Safety Code. 

(3) J:or. poststabilization services following an _emergen_cy 
achrusswn, payment amounts shall be consistent With 

COMPLAINT 
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subdivision (e) of Section 438.114 of Title 42 of the Code 
~f Federal "Regulations. This paragraph shall only be 
Implemented to the extent tliat contract amendment 
language providing for these payments is approved by 
CMS. For purposes of this paragrctph, this payment 
amount shall apply to all hospitals, including hosP.Itals that 
contract with the department under the Medi-Cal Selective 
Provider Contracting Program pursuant to Article 2.6 
(commencing with Section 14081). 

78. On October 2, 2008, the Department issued another All Plan Letter 

("APL 08-008") regarding "Reimbursement for Non-Contracted Hospital 

Emergency Inpatient Services." APL 08-008 announced the applicable two sets of 

"average regional per diem contract rates," one for January I, 2007 to June 30,2008 

and one for July 1, 2008 to June 30, 2009. A true and correct copy of APL 08-008 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. 

79. On November 10, 2008, the Department issued a third All Plan Letter 

("APL 08-010) regarding "Hospital Payment for Medi-Cal Post-Stabilization 

Services." In that letter, the Department announced that California Welfare and 

Institutions Code section 14091.3( c )(3) requires that non-contracted providers of 

poststabilization services "accept as payment in full for post"stabilization services 

the hospital's Medi-Cal Fee-For-Service (FFS) payment amounts for general acute 

care inpatient service set forth in W&I Code Section 14!66.245." (Emphasis 

removed.) These are the payment rates that were enjoined by the Ninth Circuit in 

California Pharmacists Association v. Maxwell-Jolly. A true and correct copy of 

APL 08-010 is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C. 

80. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that, like the 

Director's failures enjoined in Independent Living Centers of Southern California, et 

a!. v. Shewry, 543 F.3d 1050 (9th Cir. 2008) and California Pharmacists 

Association v. Maxwell-Jolly, prior to enacting the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates 

in AB 1183, or implementing these rates pursuant to APL 08-008 and APL 08-010, 

no studies or other analyses were conducted by the Legislature or by the Director to 

determine whether the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates would be consistent with 
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1 efficiency, economy and quality of care or with the costs of providing the services to 

2 which these rates apply. 

3 

4 CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE'S REGULATION OF 

5 POSTSTABILIZATION SERVICES AFTERAB 1183 

6 81. On September 30, 2008, the Legislature enacted Assembly Bill 1203 

7 ("AB 1203"). AB 1203 enacted significant changes to the responsibilities of health 

8 plans licensed pursuant to the Knox-Keene Act and Non-Contracted Hospitals with 

9 regard to post-stabilization care. 

10 82. AB 1203 amended California Health and Safety Code section 1262.8 to 

11 require that if a hospital is able to obtain the name and contact information of a 

12 patient's health care service plan (after seeking to do so as required by the section), 

13 the hospital must contact the plan or the plan's contracting medical provider for 

14 authorization to provide poststabilization care. Cal. Health & Sa£ Code § 

15 1262.8(b). 

16 83. The plan must within thirty minutes either approve the post-

17 stabilization services or decide to transfer the patient. Cal. Health & Saf. Code § 

18 1371.40). 

19 84. If the plan does not notify the hospital of its decision to either approve 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

post-stabilization services or transfer the patient, Health and Safety Code section 

1268.2(d)(2) requires that the plan "shall pay charges for the care .... " (Emphasis 

added.) Likewise, if a plan decides to transfer a patient but fails to transfer the 

patient "within a reasonable time[,]" the plan is liable to pay "charges" for the care. 

Cal. Health &Saf. Code§ 1268.2(d)(3) (emphasis added). 

85. Nothing in AB 1203 exempts Medi-Cal managed care plans licensed by 

the Department of Managed Health Care from its requirements. 
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1 DEFENDANT'S VIOLATIONS OF LAW 

2 86. Violation of Federal Statute: The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are 

3 invalid and may not lawfully be implemented because they violate federal Medicaid 

4 law, and are therefore preempted by the Supremacy Clause, because: 

5 a. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate Section 30(A) because: 

6 t. Neither the Director rior the Legislature considered the factors of 

7 efficiency, economy, quality of care, and access to services prior to enacting the AB 

8 1183 Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; 

9 ii. Neither the Director nor the Legislature demonstrated a 

10 reasonable connection between Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and the efficient and 

11 economical provision of quality care, or ensuring access to services, prior to 

12 enacting the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; 

13 iii. Neither the Legislature nor the Director considered the costs of 

14 providing quality care, relied on credible cost studies in enacting the Non-

15 Contracted Hospital Rates, or demonstrated a reasonable connection between Medi-

16 Cal rates as affected by the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and provider costs; 

17 tv. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are not consistent with 

18 efficiency, economy, and quality of care, and do not ensure that Medi-Cal 

19 beneficiaries have equal access to services; and/or 

20 v. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are not reasonably related to 

21 hospital costs of providing the services subject to these rates. The SPCP contract 

22 rates from which the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates were derived are not based on 

23 hospital costs, were not intended to cover the costs of efficient and economical 

24 hospitals and were intended to be and are less than hospital costs so that the 

25 California Medical Assistance Commission could show annually that the SPCP 

26 saved the Medi-Cal program money as compared to the reimbursement that would 

27 have been paid under the Medi-Cal program's reasonable cost reimbursement 

28 methodology. The use of statewide average SPCP contract rates to determine the 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Non-Contracted Hospital Rates is not consistent with efficiency, economy and 

quality of care, and results in rates that are not reasonably related to hospital costs 

because, inter alia, the rates do not take into account various factors that affect 

hospital costs, such as differences among hospitals in the types of cases (or case 

mix) they treat; differences among hospitals in the types of patients (or patient mix) 

they treat; differences between the average cost of treating patients under SPCP 

contracts and the patients treated on out-of-networlc bases under Medi-Cal managed 

care, which include primarily patients initially seen on an emergency basis; and 

regional variances in salaries and other cost inputs. 

b. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate Section 13(A) because they 

were not adopted through a public process as required by this provision. For 

example: 

1. The proposed Non-Contract Hospital Rates, the methodologies 

underlying the establishment of these rates and the justifications for the rates were 

never published; 

16 

17 

18 

ii. Providers, beneficiaries, and their representatives and other 

concerned residents of the State of California were never given a reasonable 

opportunity to review and comment on the proposed rates, methodologies and 

19 justifications; 

20 lli. The final Non-Contract Hospital Rates, the methodologies 

21 underlying the establishment of these rates and the justifications for the rates were 

22 never published; and/or 

23 IV. The Non-Contract Hospital Rates do not take into account the 

24 situation of hospitals which serve a disproportionate number of low-income patients 

25 with special needs; 

26 c. The Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates violate 42 U.S.C. 

27 section 1396u-2(b) because: 

28 I. 42 D. S.C. section 1396u-2(b )(2)(D) reqUires payment from 
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1 Medi-Cal managed care plans at an "average contract rate," which encompasses all 

2 payments from California to a hospital under the hospital's SPCP contract. The 

3 Director did not include certain payments made to hospitals for inpatient services 

4 under the hospitals' SPCP contracts in computing the Non-Contracted Hospital 

5 Emergency Rates, including supplemental payments paid to hospitals as part of their 

6 SPCP contracts; and/or 

7 ll. 42 U.S.C. section 1396u-2(b)(2)(D) is intended to requrre 

8 payments to Non-Contract Hospitals for emergency services to approximate the 

9 amounts that hospitals would have been paid under the fee-for-service program. 

10 The Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates fail to accurately reflect the 

11 payments under the fee-for-service program because the Director calculated the 

12 Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates without taking into account the 

13 differences in Medi-Cal volume between facilities with SPCP contracts. In other 

14 words, the Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates are preempted by 42 U.S.C. 

15 section 1396u-2(b)(2)(D) because they are calculated as an "unweighted" or 

16 "straight" average of SPCP contract rates, rather than an average weighted based on 

17 the volume of Medi-Cal inpatient services furnished by each SPCP contracted 

18 hospital; and/or 

19 n1. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates violate 42 

20 U.S.C. section 1396u-2(b)(2)(A)(ii) because inasmuch as they attempt to establish 

21 poststabilization rates in compliance with federal law, they do not require that Medi-

22 Cal managed care plans comply with guidelines for Medicare managed care plans 

23 with regard to poststabilization care "in the same manner as such guidelines apply" 

24 to Medicare managed care plans. 

25 87. Violation of Federal Regulations: The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates 

26 are invalid and may not lawfully be implemented because they violate federal 

27 Medicaid regulations, and are therefore preempted by the Supremacy Clause, 

28 because: 
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I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

-
a. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate 42 C.F.R. section 447.205 

because the Department failed to give public notice as required by this provision as 

follows: 

1. Public notice is required because the Non-Contracted Hospital 

Rates are a significant change in the Department's methods and standard for setting 

payment rates for Non-Contracted Hospital services; 

11. The Department failed to provide public notice describing the 

proposed change in method and standards, giving an estimate of of any increase or 

decrease in annual aggregate expenditures, explaining why the agency was changing 

its methods and standards, identifYing a local agency in each county where copies of 

the proposed changes were available for review, giving an address where written 

comments may be sent and reviewed by the public, and giving the location, date and 

time of any public hearings; and 

m. No prior notice was ever published as a public announcement in 

a suitable publication as defined in 42 C.F.R. § 447 205(d)(2); and/or 

b. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates violate 42 C.F.R. 

section 438.114 because, if and to the extent this regulation establishes any rate of 

payment to Non-Contracted Hospitals for poststabilization services, it requires 

payment for poststabilization services at the Medicare fee-for-service rates, and the 

Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are generally lower than the 

Medicare fee-for-service rates. 

88. No State Plan Amendment: The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are 

invalid and may not lawfully be implemented because they are inconsistent with and 

violate the State Plan, including, but not limited to, Attachment 4.19-A of the State 

Plan as to hospital inpatient services. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are 

therefore preempted by the Supremacy Clause. The Director may not lawfully 

implement the AB 1183 Rate Reductions unless and until he obtains federal 

28 approval of the necessary amendments to the State Plan from the federal 

COMPLAINT 
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1 government. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that the 

2 Director has not obtained federal approval of a State Plan Amendment for the Non-

3 Contracted Hospital Rates. 

4 89. Violation of U.S. and California Constitution: The Non-Contracted 

5 Hospital Rates violate the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution and Article I, 

6 section 19 of the California Constitution by effectuating a taking of the property of 

7 hospitals to Medi-Cal managed care plans without any public use or purpose. In this 

8 regard: 

9 a. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates force Plaintiff and its members to 

10 absorb losses and thereby directly subsidize privately owned and operated Medi-Cal 

11 managed care plans; 

12 b. Givt;n the prevailing capitation payment arrangements with the 

13 Department, the Medi-Cal managed care plans are the sole, direct and substantial 

14 beneficiaries of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; 

15 c. No public purpose for the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates was 

16 enunciated in section 6085 of the Deficit Reduction Act, Assembly Bill 1183 or any 

17 ofthe Department's All Plan Letters; 

18 d. Any public benefit that might result from plaintiffs members accepting 

19 the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates is, at best, indirect, incidental, and attenuated; 

20 and/or 

21 e. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates were enacted at the instance and 

22 for the pecuniary benefit of the managed care industry as a means of enhancing the 

23 profitability of private managed care plans; any intended or alleged public benefit is 

24 pretex tual. 

25 90. Violation of State Law: 

26 a. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates violate Welfare 

27 and Institutions Code section 14091.3(c)(3) because the Non-Contracted Hospital 

28 Poststabilization Rates are not consistent with 42 C.F.R. section 438.114(e) as 

COMPLAJNT 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

required by section 14091.3(c)(3). To the extent 42 C.F.R. section 438.114(e) 

specifies a payment rate, it specifies a payment rate equal to the amount that would 

have been paid on a fee-for-service basis under the Medicare program through its 

references to various Medicare regulations. The Non-Contracted Hospital 

Poststabilization Rates are generally lower than the Medicare fee-for-service rates; 

b. To the extent that 42 C.F.R. section 438.114(e) does not specify a rate 

of payment, the Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are invalid because 

they result from an invalid delegation of legislative authority to the Department and 

the Director pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code section 14091.3(c), as the 

Department and the Director are provided no standards whatsoever by the 

legislature for the development of Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates. 

This delegation without standards violates the California Constitution by 

impermissibly authorizing the executive branch of state government to assume 

legislative functions which are the exclusive province of the state legislature; 

c. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid as underground 

rulemaking without compliance with the procedural requirements of the California 

Administrative Procedure Act, Government Code sections 11340, et seq. The Non

Contracted Hospital Rates constitute regulations under California law because they 

are rules of general application. However, they were implemented pursuant to APL 

08-008 and APL 08-010, neither of which was adopted in accordance with the 

21 California Administrative Procedure Act; 

22 d. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid because they conflict 

23 with the "reasonable and customary" payment standard of Title 28, California Code 

24 of Regulations, section 1300.7l(a)(3); 

25 e. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are invalid 

26 because they attempt to establish a lower rate of payment for poststabilization 

27 services that is almost always lower than hospital charges in direct contradiction of 

28 the statutory requirem~tnt in AB 1203 that a plan pay charges for care if it does not 
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.1 notify the hospital of its decision to either approve post-stabilization services or 

2 transfer the patient or if a plan decides to transfer a patient but fails to transfer the 

3 patient "within a reasonable time;" 

4 f. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid because they attempt to 

5 establish a lower rate of payment for emergency services than those required by 

6 California Health and Safety Code section 1317 .2a( d); and/or 

7 g. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid because they violate 

8 Title 22, California Code of Regulations, section 50004, by establishing rates that 

9 are inconsistent with and violate the State Plan which currently does not include the 

10 Non-Contractual Hospital Rates. 

11 

12 FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION 

13 (VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(30)(A)/SUPREMACY CLAUSE) 

14 91. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 90, 

15 inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

16 92. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate Section 30(A) of the 

17 Medicaid Act because: 

18 a. Neither the Director nor the Legislature considered the factors of 

19 efficiency, economy, quality of care, and access to services prior to enacting the 

20 Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

b. Neither the Director nor the Legislature demonstrated a reasonable 

connection between the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and the provision of quality 

care in an efficient and economic manner, or ensuring access to services, prior to 

enacting the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; and 

c. Neither the Legislature nor the Director considered the costs of 

providing quality care or demonstrated a reasonable connection between Medi-Cal 

rates as affected by the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and provider costs. 

d. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are not consistent with efficiency, 

------·---------;=~=c-----------
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1 economy, and quality of care, and do not ensure that Medi-Cal beneficiaries have 

2 equal access to services; and/or 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

e. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are not reasonably related to 

hospital costs of providing the services subject to these rates. 

93. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and the provisions of California 

law pursuant to which they have been implemented are thus preempted by the 

Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, art. IV, because the mandated 

rates, enacted solely for the benefit of Medi-Cal managed care plans in disregard of 

the Section 30(A) statutory factors, stand as an obstacle to the accomplishment and 

execution of the full purposes and objectives of Congress in the enactment of said 

Section. Moreover, the Non-Contracted Hospital rates are preempted under the 

Supremacy Clause because the Director cannot simultaneously comply with the 

provisions of California law requiring the implementation of the Non-Contracted 

Hospital Rates and Section 30(A). 

SECOND CAUSE OF ACfiON 

(VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(13)(A) 

SUPREMACY CLAUSE/42 U.S.C. § 1983) 

94. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 93, 

inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

95. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate Section 13(A) because they 

were not adopted through a public process as required by this provision. 

23 96. Specifically, the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates were not enacted in 

24 accordance with Section 13(A) because: 

25 a. The proposed Non-Contract Hospital Rates, the methodologies 

26 underlying the establishment of these rates and the justifications for the rates were 

27 never published; 

28 b. Providers, beneficiaries, and their representatives and other concerned 
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1 residents of the State of California were never given a reasonable opportunity to 

2 review and comment on the proposed rates, methodologies and justifications; 

3 c. The final Non-Contract Hospital Rates, the methodologies underlying 

4 the establishment of these rates and the justifications for the rates were never 

5 published; and/or 

6 d. The Non-Contract Hospital Rates do not take into account the situation 

7 of hospitals which serve a disproportionate number of low-income patients with 

8 special needs; and/or 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

97. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates have been adopted by the 

Department under color of state law. CHA represents the interests of hospitals that 

have been deprived of their privately enforceable rights conferred by 42 U.S.C. 

section l396a(a)(I3)(A). Accordingly, the Director has violated 42 U.S.C. section 

1983 by adopting the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates. 

98. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are also preempted by the 

Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, art IV. Moreover, the Non

Contracted Hospital rates are preempted under the Supremacy Clause because the 

Director cannot simultaneously comply with the provisions of· California law 

requiring the implementation of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and Section 

19 13(A). 

20 

21 TIDRD CAUSE OF ACTION 

22 (VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 1396u-2(b) 

SUPREMACY CLAUSE/42 U.S.C. § 1983) 23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

99. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs I through 99, 

inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

100. The Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates violate 42 U.S.C. 

section 1396u-2(b )(2)(D) because they fail to include all the payments to hospitals 

pursuant to their SPCP contracts by excluding supplemental payments to hospitals. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

101. The Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency Rates further violate 42 

U.S.C. section 1396u-2(b)(2)(D) because they fail to accurately reflect the amounts 

hospitals would have been paid from the Medi-Cal fee-for-service program by 

calculating the average contract amounts as a straight, unweighted average. 

102. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates violate 42 U.S.C. 

section 1396u-2(b)(2)(A)(ii) because inasmuch as they attempt to establish 

poststabilization rates in compliance with federal law, they do not require that Medi

Cal managed care plans comply with guidelines for Medicare managed care plans 

with regard to poststabilization care "in the same manner as such guidelines apply'' 

to Medicare managed care plans. 

103. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates have been adopted by the 

Department under color of state law. CHA represents the interests of hospitals that 

have been deprived of their privately enforceable rights conferred by 42 U.S.C. 

section 1396u-2(b)(2). Accordingly, the Director has violated 42 U.S.C. section 

1983 by adopting the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates. 

104. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are also preempted by ·the 

Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, art. N. Moreover, the Non

Contracted rates are preempted under the Supremacy Clause because the Director 

cannot simultaneously comply with the provisions of California law requiring the 

implementation of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and 42 U.S.C. sections 

21 1396u-2(b)(2)(D) and 1396u-2(b)(2)(A)(ii). 

22 

23 FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

24 (VIOLATION OF 42 C.KR. § 447.205/SUPREMACY CLAUSE) 

25 105. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 105, 

26 inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

27 

28 
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1 106. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate 42 C.F.R. section 447.205 

2 because the Department failed to give public notice as required by this provision as 

3 follows: 

4 a. Public notice is required because the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates 

5 are a significant change in the Department's methods and standard for setting 

6 payment rates for Non-Contracted Hospital services; 

7 b. The Department failed to provide public notice describing the proposed 

8 change in method and standards, giving an estimate of of any increase or decrease in 

9 annual aggregate expenditures, explaining why the agency was changing its 

10 methods and standards, identifying a local agency in each county where copies of 

11 the proposed changes were available for review, giving an address where written 

12 comments may be sent and reviewed by the public, and giving the location, date and 

13 time of any public hearings; and 

14 c. No prior notice was ever published as a public announcement in a 

15 suitable publication as defined in 42 C.F.R. §447.205(d)(2). 

16 

17 FIFI'H CAUSE OF ACTION 

18 (VIOLATION OF 42 C.F.R. § 438.114/SUPREMACY CLAUSE) 

19 107. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs I through 106, 

20 inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

21 108. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are invalid and 

22 may not lawfully be implemented because they are inconsistent with 42 C.F.R. 

23 section 438.114 because if that regulation establishes any rate of payment for pre-

24 approved poststabilization services, that rate would be equal to the Medicare fee-for-

25 service rate. 

26 I 09. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are thus 

27 preempted by the Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, art. IV. 

28 Moreover, the Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are preempted under 
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1 the Supremacy Clause because the Director cannot simultaneously comply with the 

2 provisions of California law requiring the implementation of the Non-Contracted 

3 Hospital Emergency Rates and 42 C.F.R. section 438.114. 

4 

5 SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

6 (FAILURE TO AMEND STATE PLAN/SUPREMACY CLAUSE) 

7 110. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 109, 

8 inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

9 111. The Director may not lawfully implement the Non-Contracted Hospital 

10 Rates because they are inconsistent with and violate the State Plan unless and until it 

11 obtains federal approval of the necessary amendments to the State Plan to the 

12 federal government. 

13 112. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are thus preempted by the 

14 Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, art. IV. Moreover, the Non-

15 Contracted Hospital rates are preempted under the Supremacy Clause because the 

16 Director cannot simultaneously comply with the provisions of California law 

17 requiring the implementation of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and the State 

18 Plan. 

19 

20 SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

21 (VIOLATION OF U.S. CONSTITUTION TAKINGS CLAUSE 

22 SUPREMACY CLAUSE/42 U.S.C. § 1983) 

23 113. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 112, 

24 inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

25 114. The takings clause of the Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution 

26 prohibits the taking of "private property" by the government "without just 

27 compensation." 

28 115. Takings are not limited to outright seJ=es or condemnations of 

COMPLAINT 
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1 physical property, but may include the forced diminution in the value of private 

2 property resulting from governmental regulation of the use of private business or 

3 property. 

4 116. The "public use" clause of the Fifth Amendment permits any taking of 

5 private property only for a public purpose. 

6 117. The takings affected by the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are not for a 

7 public purpose. In this regard: 

8 a. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates force Plaintiff and its members to 

9 absorb losses and thereby directly subsidize privately owned and operated Medi-Cal 

10 managed care plans; 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

b. Given the prevailing capitation payment arrangements with the· 

Department, the Medi-Cal managed care plans are the sole, direct and substantial 

beneficiaries of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; 

c. No public purpose for the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates was 

enunciated in section 6085 of the Deficit Reduction Act, Assembly Bill 1183 or any 

of the Department's All Plan Letters; 

d. Any public benefit that might result from plaintiff's members accepting 

the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates is, at best, indirect, incidental, and attenuated; 

e. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates were enacted at the instance and 

20 

21 

for the pecuniary benefit of the managed care industry as a means of enhancing the 

profitability of private managed care plans; any intended or alleged public benefit is 

22 pretextual. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

118. Accordingly, the takings effectuated by the Non-Contracted Hospital 

Rates are per se unconstitutional takings. 

119. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates have been adopted by the 

Department under color of state law. CHA represents the interests of hospitals that 

have been deprived of their privately enforceable right to be free of unlawful takings 

guaranteed under the U.S. Constitution. Accordingly, the Director has violated 42 
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-
I U.S.C. section 1983 by adopting the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates. 

2 120. Also, the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are preempted by the 

3 Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, art. IV. Moreover, the Non-

4 Contracted Hospital rates are preempted under the Supremacy Clause because the 

5 Director cannot simultaneously comply with the provisions of California law 

6 requiring the implementation of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates and the 

7 Constitutional prohibition of takings without a public use. 

8 

9 

IO EIGIITH CAUSE OF ACI'ION 

II (PEmiON FOR WRIT OF MANDATE 

I2 CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE § I085) 

13 121. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs I through 120, 

I4 inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

IS 122. Plaintiff has a beneficial interest that rates established for non-contract 

I6 hospitals comply with the requirements of the California Constitution and other 

I7 California statutes. 

I8 123. The Director has a duty to comply with the federal laws, the U.S. and 

I9 California Constitutions and other California statutes, but has violated this duty, by 

20 adopting the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates in violation of 42 U.S.C. sections 

2I 1396a(a)(30)(A), 1396a(a)(13)(A), 1396u-2(b)(2)(D) and 1396u-2(b)(2)(A)(ii), 42 

22 C.F.R. sections 447.205 and 438.114, the State Plan, the Fifth Amendment of the 

23 U.S. Constitution, section 19 of Article I of the California Constitution, California 

24 Welfare and Institutions Code sections 14091.3(c)(3), California Health and Safety 

25 Code sections 1268.2 and 1317.2a(d), the California Administrative Procedure Act, 

26 California Government Code section 11340, et seq., Title 22, California Code of 

27 Regulations, section 50004 and Title 28, California Code of Regulations, section 

28 l300.71(a)(3). 

--~---=~-c=;;-------
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1 124. Specifically, the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate the California 

2 Constitution and California statutes as follows: 

3 125. Section 19 of Article I of the California Constitution permits the taking 

4 of "private property'' by the government only when the taking is "for a public use 

5 and only when just compensation ... has first been paid to, or into court for, the 

6 owner." 

7 126. Takings are not limited to outright seizures or condemnations of 

8 physical property, but may include the forced diminution in the value of private 

9 property resulting from governmental regulation of the use of private business or 

10 property. 

11 127. The "public use" clause of the section 19 of Article I of the California 

12 Constitution permits any taking of private property only for a public purpose. 

13 128. The takings affected by the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are not for a 

14 public purpose. In this regard: 

15 a. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates force Plaintiff and its members to 

16 absorb losses and thereby directly subsidize privately owned and operated Medi-Cal 

17 managed care plans; 

18 b. Given the prevailing capitation payment arrangements with the 

19 Department, the Medi-Cal managed care plans are the sole, direct and substantial 

20 beneficiaries of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; 

21 c. No public purpose for the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates was 

22 enunciated in Assembly Bill 1183 or any of the Department's All Plan Letters; 

23 d. Any public benefit that might result from plaintiff's members accepting 

24 the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates is, at best, indirect, incidental, and attenuated; 

25 e. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates were enacted at the instance and 

26 for the pecuniary benefit of the managed care industry in California as a means of 

27 enl!ancing the profitability of private managed care plans; any intended or alleged 

28 public benefit is pretextual. 

COMPLAINT 
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1 129. Accordingly, the takings effectuated by the Non-Contracted Hospital 

2 Rates are per se unconstitutional pursuant to the California Constitution. 

3 130. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates violate Welfare 

4 and Institutions Code section 14091.3(c)(3) because the Non-Contracted Hospital 

5 Poststabilization Rates are not consistent with 42 C.F.R. section 438.114(e) as 

6 required by section 14091.3(c)(3). To the extent 42 C.F.R. section 438.114(e) 

7 specifies a payment rate, it specifies a payment rate equal to the amount that would 

8 have been paid on a fee-for-service basis under the Medicare program through its 

9 references to vanous Medicare regulations. Non-Contracted Hospital 

10 Poststabilization Rates are generally lower than the Medicare fee-for-service rates. 

11 131. To the extent that 42 C.F.R. section 438.114(e) does not specify a rate 

12 of payment, the Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are invalid because 

13 they result from an invalid delegation of legislative authority to the Department and 

14 the Director pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code section 14091.3(c), as the 

15 Department and the Director are provided no standards whatsoever by the 

16 legislature for the development of Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates. 

17 This delegation without standards violates the California Constitution by 

18 impermissibly authorizing the executive branch of state government to assume 

19 legislative functions which are the exclusive province ofthe state legislature. 

20 132. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid as underground 

21 rulemaking without compliance with the procedural requirements of the California 

22 Administrative Procedure Act, Government Code sections 11340, et seq. The Non-

23 Contracted Hospital Rates constitute regulations under California law because they 

24 are rules of general applications. However, they were implemented pursuant to APL 

25 08-008 and APL 08-010, neither of which was adopted in accordance with the 

26 California Administrative Procedure Act. 

27 133. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid because they conflict 

28 with the "reasonable and customary'' payment standard of Title 28, California Code 

COMPLAINT 
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1 ofRegulations, section 1300.7l(a)(3). 

2 134. The Non-Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates are invalid 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

because they attempt to establish a lower rate of payment for poststabilization 

services in direct contradiction of the statutory requirement in AB 1203 that a plan 

pay charges for care if it does not notify the hospital of its decision to either approve 

post-stabilization services or transfer the patient or if a plan decides to transfer a 

patient but fails to transfer the patient "within a reasonable time." 

135. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid because they attempt to 

establish a lower rate of payment for emergency services than those required by 

California Health and Safety Code section 1317 .2a( d). 

136. The Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid because they violate 

Title 22, California Code of Regulations, section 50004, by establishing rates that 

are inconsistent with and violate the State Plan. 

137. Plaintiff has performed all conditions precedent to the filing of the 

petition for mandamus. No other adequate remedies exist under statute, regulation 

or other provision of law. The existence of declaratory relief and injunctive relief 

does not prevent the use of mandate. (County of Los Angeles v. State Department of 

Public Health (1958) !58 Cal.App.2d 425, 446.) 

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(DECLARATORY RELIEF) 

22 138. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference paragraphs I through 137, 

23 inclusive, as though fully set forth herein. 

24 139. An actual and justiciable controversy exists between Plaintiff and the 

25 Director regarding the validity of the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates. Plaintiff 

26 contends that the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid and unlawful in 

27 violation of federal statute, federal regulations, the State Plan, the U.S. and 

28 California Constitutions, and California laws, while the Director contends that the 

COMPLAINr 
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1 Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are valid in all respects. 

2 140. Accordingly, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 2201, Plaintiff requests this 

3 Court to declare that the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates are invalid and unlawful. 

4 141. No administrative appeal process or other administrative remedy is 

5 available to Plaintiffs to challenge the AB 1183 Rate Reductions. 

6 142. All of the said injuries are great and immediate, for which damages at 

7 law are inadequate, and for which plaintiffs have no plain, adequate or speedy relief 

8 at law or otherwise. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment as follows: 

1. For an Order declaring that the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate 

42 U.S.C. sections 1396a(a)(30)(A), 1396a(a)(13) and 1396u-2(b)(2), 42 C.F.R. 

section 447.205, and the Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution and are 

thus invalid and/or preempted by the Supremacy Clause of the United States 

Constitution, art. IV; 

2. For an Order declaring that the Non-Contracted Hospital 

Poststabilization Rates violate 42 C.F.R. section 438.114 and are thus invalid and/or 

preempted by the Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, art. IV; 

3. For an Order declaring that the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates 

20 represent a de facto amendment to the State Plan and therefore said rate reductions 

21 cannot be imposed without federal approval; 

22 4. For an Order declaring that the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates violate 

23 section 19 of Article I (takings clause) and section 3 of Article III (separation of 

24 powers) of the California Constitution, the California Administrative Procedure Act, 

25 California Government Code section 11340, et seq., Title 22, California Code of 

26 Regulations, section 50004, and Title 28, California Code of Regulations 

27 1300.7l(a)(3), and are thus invalid; 

28 5. For an Order declaring that the Non-Contracted Hospital Emergency 

COMPLAINT 
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1 Rates violate California Health and Safety Code section 1317.2a(d), and are thus 

2 invalid; 

3 6. For an Order declaring that the Non-Contracted Hospital 

4 Poststabilization Rates violate California Health and Safety Code section 1268.2, 

5 and Welfare and Institutions Code section 1409l.3(c)(3), and are thus invalid; 

6 7. For an Order declaring that, when setting Non-Contracted Hospital 

7 Rates in the future, the Department must consider whether the rates have a 

reasonable relationship to the costs of providing services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries 

to comply with federal Medicaid requirements and so as to prevent a taking for the 

sole, primary benefit of a private party; 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

8. For a Writ of Mandate invalidating the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates 

because they violate 42 U.S.C. sections 1396a(a)(30)(A), 1396a(a)(13) and 1396u-

2(b)(2), 42 C.P.R. section 447.205, the Fifth Amendment of the United States 

Constitution, section 19 of Article I (takings clause) and section 3 of Article ill 

(separation of powers) of the California Constitution, the California Administrative 

Procedure Act, California Government Code section 11340, et seq., Title 22, 

California Code of Regulations, section 50004, and Title 28, California Code of 

Regulations l300.7l(a)(3), and ordering the Director not to implement the Non-

19 Contracted Hospital Rates; 

20 9. For a Writ of Mandate invalidating the Non-Contracted Hospital 

21 Emergency Rates because they violate California Health and Safety Code section 

22 1317 .2a( d), and ordering the Director not to implement the Non-Contracted Hospital 

23 Emergency Rates; 

24 I 0. For a Writ of Mandate invalidating the Non-Contracted Hospital 

25 Poststabilization Rates because they violate 42 C.P.R. section 438.114, California 

26 Health and Safety Code section 1268.2, and California Welfare and Institutions 

27 Code section 14091.3(c)(3) and ordering the Director not to implement the Non-

28 Contracted Hospital Poststabilization Rates; 
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1 11. For an Order preliminarily and permanently enjoining Director from 

2 effectuating the Non-Contracted Hospital Rates; 

3 12. For the costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by 

4 Plaintiff pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 or as may otherwise be authorized by law; 

S and 

6 13. Such other and further relief as may be just and proper. 

7 

8 DATED: May 22, 2009 

9 

10 By: 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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